




































 

IRMCD Policy  
P-2024-001 

Public Meeting Decorum 
Adopted:  
Reviewed:   May 14, 2024 

 

Replaces Public Participation Policy P-2021-004 

Opportunity for Public Comment 

Members of the public will be given an opportunity to provide input to the Board of Commissioners 
(Board) at public meetings and public hearings. As a general rule, public discussion items should be 
limited to matters which the board may take action on. 

1. Members of the public may address the governing board during the Public Comment Period or 
prior to the consideration of any agenda item, except in the following situations. 

a. An official act that must be taken to deal with an emergency situation affecting the 
public health, welfare, or safety, if compliance with the requirements would cause an 
unreasonable delay in the ability of the Board to act. 

b. An official act of the Board involving no more than a ministerial act, including, but not 
limited to, approval of minutes and ceremonial proclamations; or 

c. A meeting that is exempt pursuant to F.S. § 286.011, such as a meeting with the 
District’s attorney/legal counsel concerning settlement negotiations or strategy sessions 
related to litigation expenditures. 

Meeting Decorum 

1. Members of the Board, speakers, employees, and audience members must observe proper 
decorum.  

2. The presiding officer shall control the meeting.  

3. No person shall address the Board without first being recognized by the presiding officer.  

4. No person shall make any personal, impertinent, slanderous, obscene, profane, inflammatory, 
untruthful, irrelevant, or immaterial remarks, or become boisterous while in the Board room, or 
incite violence or fighting, or otherwise disturb the meeting, whether or not while addressing 
the Board. Heckling or verbal outbursts in support or opposition to a speaker or their remarks 
and displays of anger, rudeness, ridicule, impatience, lack of respect, and personal attacks shall 
be prohibited. 

5. Attendees when leaving the Board meeting before it is adjourned must leave in a quiet and 
orderly manner until outside the meeting room and hallway, so as not to disrupt the meeting.  

Manner of Addressing the Board 

1. Any person wishing to speak at a public meeting during the public comment period or during a 
public hearing shall raise their hand. When recognized by the presiding officer the individual 
must step up to the microphone and state their name and, if appropriate, group affiliation, and 
state the subject they will be addressing for the record.  

2. Each person addressing the Board shall do so in an orderly manner and shall not engage in any 
conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the Board 



 

IRMCD Policy  
P-2024-001 

Public Meeting Decorum 
Adopted:  
Reviewed:   May 14, 2024 

 
meeting. Any person who so disrupts the meeting may, after warning by the presiding officer, 
and at the discretion of the presiding officer or a majority of the Board members, be subject to 
ejection from that meeting. 

3. Comments must be related to the purpose of the public meeting, public hearing, or legitimate 
district business and must be addressed to the Board. Attendees may not address the Board 
members or staff unless recognized by the presiding officer. 

4. On specific agenda matters, speakers shall confine their remarks to the subject of the agenda 
matter under discussion by the Board.  

5. Members of the public shall limit their address to five minutes during the public comment 
section of the meeting unless further time is granted by the presiding officer. 

6. All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a body and not to any individual member 
thereof, nor to staff or members of the audience.  

7. No person, other than the Board and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter 
into any discussion, either directly or through a member of the Board, without the permission 
of the presiding officer.  

8. No question shall be asked of a Board member except through the presiding officer. The 
presiding officer may limit immaterial, unnecessary, or redundant comments, presentations, or 
requests.  

9. Once a motion is made by a Board member, no person from the audience shall address the 
Board. The presiding officer will ask for public comment after the discussion by Board members 
and before the vote is called. 

Public Comment Period 

1. The purpose of addressing the Board is to formally communicate with the commissioners on 
matters relating to District business or citizen concerns.  

2. The following notation shall be placed on the agenda, under section "Public Comment" and 
may be read by the presiding officer prior to hearing public comment:  

This is the time for members of the public to address the Board about items which are NOT 
listed on the agenda. Board members will solely receive input from the public and will not 
engage in dialogue with the public during this time. Each speaker will be limited to five 
minutes on any single item.  

3. Any person who desires to address the Board may be recognized by the presiding officer, give 
their name and address, and then give their remarks, limiting remarks to five minutes, unless 
additional time is granted by the presiding officer.  

4. At the conclusion of the public comment period, Board members may respond to information 
provided, ask staff to review a matter, or ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, 
individual members of the Board shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during 



 

IRMCD Policy  
P-2024-001 

Public Meeting Decorum 
Adopted:  
Reviewed:   May 14, 2024 

 
public comment unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

5. Representatives of groups or factions on a proposition may address the Board, rather than all 
members of such groups or factions, at meetings in which a large number of individuals wish 
to be heard. 

Public Comment on Agenda Items 

1. The Board shall provide an opportunity for public comment prior to the undertaking by the 
Board of any action on the agenda.    

2. Once a motion is made by a Board member, no person from the audience shall address the Board. 
The presiding officer will ask for public comment after the discussion by Board members and 
before the vote is called. 

3. Any person who desires to address the Board may be recognized by the presiding officer, 
give their name and address, and then give their remarks, limiting remarks to five minutes, 
unless additional time is granted by the presiding officer. 

4. Comments must be related to the specific matter under consideration.  

5. All comments shall be addressed to the Board as a body. 

 



















JANICE BRODA, COMMISSIONER 
MATT ERPENBECK, COMMISSIONER 
ANNA KIRKLAND, COMMISSIONER 
SHERRY BURROUGHS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

MEMORANDUM 

  

Date: May 14, 2024 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Sherry Burroughs, Executive Director & Lisa Ridley, Finance Director  

Subject: FY 2023-2024 Budget Amendment #2 and Resolution 2024-002 
 

A local budget amendment is required to cover Hurricane Nicole heavy equipment rental 
expenditures. The equipment was utilized to facilitate dike repairs at Vista Royale and Pine Island. 
Account code 44 Rentals & Leases will be increased by $12K; account code 60 Capital Outlay will 
be decreased by $12K. The reduction in capital improvement funding is a result of cost savings 
from Vista Royale Dike Improvements (Phase One).   



2 Fiscal Year: 2023-24 Date: 5/14/2024

Indian River Mosquito Contr  

Reserves Present Budget Increase Request Decrease Request Revised Budget
1,859,827.53$             9,985,738.48$            12,000.00$                 12,000.00$                 9,985,738.48$            

ACCT 
NO Present Budget Increase Request Decrease Request Revised Budget

311 6,041,415.00$                 -$                                -$                                6,041,415.00$                 
334.1 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
362 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
337 10,000.00$                      -$                                -$                                10,000.00$                      
361 25,000.00$                      -$                                -$                                25,000.00$                      
364 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
369 6,000.00$                        -$                                -$                                6,000.00$                        
380 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
389 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

6,082,415.00$                 -$                                -$                                6,082,415.00$                 
3,903,323.48$                 -$                                -$                                3,903,323.48$                 
9,985,738.48$                 -$                                -$                                9,985,738.48$                 

ACCT 
NO Present Budget Increase Request Decrease Request Revised Budget

10 2,482,908.70$                 -$                                -$                                2,482,908.70$                 
20 1,286,508.71$                 -$                                -$                                1,286,508.71$                 
30 1,016,589.00$                 -$                                -$                                1,016,589.00$                 
40 45,356.23$                      -$                                -$                                45,356.23$                      
41 39,000.00$                      -$                                -$                                39,000.00$                      
42 1,500.00$                        -$                                -$                                1,500.00$                        
43 25,000.00$                      -$                                -$                                25,000.00$                      
44 15,669.00$                      12,000.00$                      -$                                27,669.00$                      
45 122,998.32$                    -$                                -$                                122,998.32$                    
46 406,920.00$                    -$                                -$                                406,920.00$                    
47 2,000.00$                        -$                                -$                                2,000.00$                        
48 8,000.00$                        -$                                -$                                8,000.00$                        
49 4,000.00$                        -$                                -$                                4,000.00$                        
51 146,320.80$                    -$                                -$                                146,320.80$                    

52.1 91,000.00$                      -$                                -$                                91,000.00$                      
52.2 1,295,668.94$                 -$                                -$                                1,295,668.94$                 
52.3 4,876.00$                        -$                                -$                                4,876.00$                        
52.4 71,205.78$                      -$                                -$                                71,205.78$                      
52.5 5,500.00$                        -$                                -$                                5,500.00$                        
54 19,968.00$                      -$                                -$                                19,968.00$                      
55 22,847.00$                      -$                                -$                                22,847.00$                      
60 556,549.47$                    -$                                12,000.00$                      544,549.47$                    
71 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
72 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
81 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
83 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
89 455,525.00$                    -$                                -$                                455,525.00$                    
99 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                

8,125,910.95$                 12,000.00$                      12,000.00$                      8,125,910.95$                 
0.001 1,204,090.31$                 -$                                -$                                1,204,090.31$                 
0.002 -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                
0.003 583,211.00$                    -$                                -$                                583,211.00$                    
0.004 72,526.22$                      -$                                -$                                72,526.22$                      

1,859,827.53$                 -$                                -$                                1,859,827.53$                 
9,985,738.48$                 12,000.00$                      12,000.00$                      9,985,738.48$                 

-$                                (12,000.00)$                    (12,000.00)$                    -$                                

Misc./Refunds (prior yr expenditures)

Communication Services
Freight Services

TOTAL RECEIPTS

Interest Earnings

Beginning Fund Balance
Total Budgetary Receipts & Balances

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES 
 NOTE:   Total increase must equal total decrease, unless the total "Present Budget" is revised.

Uniform Accounting System Transaction

Personal Services
Personal Service Benefits
Operating Expense
Travel & Per Diem

Amendment No.
Amending:  Local Funds  X  State Funds    (Check appropriate fund account to be amended.  Use a separate form for each fund).   The 

Board of Commissioners for District hereby submits to the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 
for its consideration and approval, the following amendment for the current fiscal year as follows:

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
Division of Agricultural Environmental Services

ARTHROPOD CONTROL BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Rule 5E-13.027, F.A.C.

Telephone: (850) 617-7911; Fax (850) 617-7939

A STATEMENT EXPLAINING AND JUSTIFYING THE PROPOSED CHANGES SHOULD ACCOMPANY EACH APPLICATION FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT.  USE PAGE 
TWO FOR THIS PURPOSE.

Other Sources
Loans

ESTIMATED RECEIPTS
           NOTE:  The budget cannot be amended to show an increase in receipts over the amount budgeted unless authorized.

Total Available Cash and Receipts
9,985,738.48$                           

NAME SOURCE OF INCREASE: (Explain Decrease) Decrease Vista Royal Capital Improvement funding to cover Hurrican Nicole Rental Equipment

Equipment and/or Other Sales

BUDGETED RECEIPTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Description

Ad Valorem (Current/Delinquent)
State Grant
Equipment Rentals
Grants and Donations

Other Charges

Utility Service
Rentals & Leases
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance
Printing and Binding
Promotional Activities

Reserves - Cash Balance to be Carried Forward

Protective Clothing
Misc. Supplies

Payment of Prior Year Accounts
TOTAL BUDGET AND CHARGES

Aids to Government Agencies

Tools & Implements

Other Grants and Aids
Contingency (Current Year)

Reserves - Future Capital Outlay
Reserves - Self-Insurance

Capital Outlay
Principal
Interest

Gasoline/Oil/Lube
Chemicals

Office Supplies

Publications & Dues
Training 

FDACS-13613 Rev. 07/13

DATE______________________

Reserves - Sick and Annual Leave
TOTAL RESERVES 
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES and BALANCES

DATE______________________
       Chairman of the Board, or Clerk of Circuit Court

APPROVED:_____________________________________________________
Mosquito Control Program

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

APPROVED:_____________________________________________________

WILTON SIMPSON
COMMISSIONER

Submit to:
Mosquito Control Program
3125 Conner Blvd, Suite E
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650



 

Resolution Number 2024-002 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE INDIAN RIVER MOSQUITO CONTROL DISTRICT OF INDIAN 
RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA,  AMENDING THE LOCAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-
2024. 
 
 
WHEREAS, certain appropriation and expenditure amendments to the adopted Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 Local Budget are to be made by resolution pursuant to section 189.418(6)(c), Florida 
Statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Indian River Mosquito Control District of Indian 
River County, Florida, desires to amend the fiscal year 2023-2024 local budget, as more 
specifically set forth in Attachment “G” attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
hereof,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Indian River 
Mosquito Control District of Indian River County, Florida, that the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Local 
Budget be and hereby is amended as set forth in Attachment “F” upon adoption of this 
Resolution 
 
DULY ADOPTED at a public hearing this 14th Day of May 2024. 
 
Time Adopted _____ AM 
 
 
 

_________________________________________________ 
(Indian River Mosquito Control District of Indian River County) 

Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 





Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT - 2023 

This Agreement is an acknowledgment of receipt by the Florida Division of Emergency 
Management (“the Division”) and the local government (“Participating Party”) signing this 
Agreement. Execution of this agreement replaces all previous iterations and is active until a new 
agreement is drafted and requested by The Division.  
This Agreement is based on the existence of the following conditions: 

A. The State of Florida is vulnerable to a wide range of emergencies and disasters that
are likely to cause the disruption of essential services and the destruction of the
infrastructure needed to deliver those services.

B. Such emergencies and disasters often exceed the emergency response and recovery
capabilities of any one county or local government.

C. Such incidents may also give rise to unusual and unanticipated physical and technical
needs which a local government cannot meet with existing resources, but that other local
governments within the State of Florida may be able to provide.

D. The Emergency Management Act, chapter 252, Florida Statutes, provides each local
government of the state the authority to develop and enter into mutual aid agreements
within the state for reciprocal emergency aid in case of emergencies too extensive to be
dealt with unassisted, and through such agreements ensure the timely reimbursement
of costs incurred by the local governments which render such assistance.

E. Pursuant to chapter 252.32, Florida Statutes, the Division renders mutual aid among
the political subdivisions of the state to carry out emergency management functions
and responsibilities.

F. Pursuant to chapter 252, Florida Statutes, the Division has the authority to coordinate
and direct emergency management assistance between local governments and
concentrate available resources where needed.

Based on the existence of the foregoing conditions, the Parties agree to the following articles: 

ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Agreement, the following expressions shall have the following meanings: 

A. The “Agreement” is this Agreement, which shall be referred to as the Statewide Mutual
Aid Agreement (“SMAA”).

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

B. The “Division” is the Florida Division of Emergency Management.

C. A “Requesting Party” to this Agreement is a Participating Party who requests assistance
under this agreement.

D. An “Assisting Party” to this Agreement is a Participating Party who provides assistance
to a Requesting Party under this agreement.

E. The “Period of Assistance” is the time during which an Assisting Party renders
assistance to a Requesting Party under this agreement and includes the time
necessary for the resources and personnel of the Assisting Party to travel to the
place specified by the Requesting Party and the time necessary to return to their place
of origin.

F. A “Mission” is a documented emergency response activity performed during a Period of
Assistance, usually in reference to one operational function or activity.

G. A “local government” is any educational district, special district, or any entity that is a
“local governmental entity” within the meaning of section 11.45(1)(g), Florida Statutes.

H. An “educational district” is any school district within the meaning of section 1001.30,
Florida Statutes, and any Florida College System Institution or State University within
the meaning of section 1000.21, Florida Statutes.

I. A “special district” is any local or regional governmental entity which is an
independent special district within the meaning of section 189.012(3), Florida Statutes,
established by local, special, or general act, or by rule, ordinance, resolution, or interlocal
agreement.

J. A “tribal council” is the respective governing bodies of the Seminole Tribe of Florida and
Miccosukee Tribe of Indians recognized as special improvement district by section
285.18(1), Florida Statutes.

K. An “interlocal agreement” is any agreement between local governments within the
meaning of section 163.01(3)(a), Florida Statutes.

L. A “Resource Support Agreement” as used in this Agreement refers to a supplemental
agreement of support between a Requesting Party and an Assisting Party.

M. “Proof of work” as used in this Agreement refers to original and authentic documentation
of a single individual or group of individuals’ emergency response activity at a tactical
level.

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

N. "Proof of payment” as used in this Agreement refers to original and authentic
documentation of an emergency response expenditure made by an Assisting Party.

O. A “Reimbursement Package” as used in this Agreement refers to a full account of mission
response documentation supported by proof of work and proof of payment.

P. Any expressions not assigned definitions elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the
definitions assigned them by the Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, Florida
Statutes.

ARTICLE II: APPLICABILITY OF THE AGREEMENT 

Any Participating Party, including the Division, may request assistance under this Agreement for 
a “major disaster” or “catastrophic disaster” as defined in section 252.34, Florida Statutes, minor 
disasters, and other such emergencies as lawfully determined by a Participating Party. 

ARTICLE III: INVOCATION OF THE AGREEMENT 

In the event of an emergency or anticipated emergency, a Participating Party may request 
assistance under this Agreement from any other Participating Party or the Division if, in the 
judgement of the Requesting Party, its own resources are inadequate to meet the needs of the 
emergency or disaster. 

A. Any request for assistance under this Agreement may be oral, but within five (5)
calendar days must be confirmed in writing by the Requesting Party. All requests for
assistance under this Agreement shall be transmitted by the Requesting Party to
another Participating Party or the Division. If the Requesting Party transmits its request
for Assistance directly to a Participating Party other than the Division, the Requesting
Party and Assisting Party shall keep the Division advised of their activities.

B. The Division shall relay any requests for assistance under this Agreement to such other
Participating Parties as it may deem appropriate and coordinate the activities of the
Assisting Parties to ensure timely assistance to the Requesting Party. All such activities
shall be carried out in accordance with the State’s Comprehensive Emergency
Management Plan.

ARTICLE IV: RESPONSIBILITIES OF REQUESTING PARTIES 

To the extent practicable, all Requesting Parties shall provide the following information to their 
respective county emergency management agency, the Division, and the intended Assisting Party 
or Parties. In providing such information, Requesting Parties should utilize Section I of the 

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

Resource Support Agreement (RSA) Form, available via the Division approved documents 
SharePoint site1.  

A. A description of the Mission to be performed by the Assisting Party;

B. A description of the resources and capabilities needed to complete the Mission
successfully;

C. The location, date, and time personnel and resources from the Assisting Party should
arrive at the incident site, staging area, facility, or other location designated by the
Requesting Party;

D. A description of the health, safety, and working conditions expected for deploying
personnel;

E. Lodging and meal availability;

F. Any logistical requirements;

G. A description of any location or facility outside the territorial jurisdiction of the
Requesting Party needed to stage incoming resources and personnel;

H. The location date, and time for personnel of the Requesting Party to meet and receive
the personnel and equipment of the Assisting Party; and

I. A technical description of any communications equipment needed to ensure effective
information sharing between the Requesting Party, any Assisting Parties, and all
relevant responding entities.

ARTICLE V: RESPONSIBILITIES OF ASSISTING PARTIES 

Each Party shall render assistance under this Agreement to any Requesting Party to the extent 
practicable that its personnel, equipment, resources, and capabilities can render assistance. If 
upon receiving a request for assistance under this Agreement a Party determines that it has the 
capacity to render some or all of such assistance, it shall provide the following information without 
delay to the Requesting Party, the Division, and the Assisting Party’s County emergency 
management agency. In providing such information, the Assisting Party should utilize the Section 
II of the Resource Support Agreement (RSA) Form, available via the Division approved 
documents SharePoint site.  

1 FDEM approved documents such as activity logs and mutual aid forms can be found at:  
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D068
6%7D

http://www.floridadisaster.org/
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fprojects%2FFROC%2FFROC%5FDocuments%2FMutual%20Aid&FolderCTID=0x0120002846EC3DE36C1940A1B4F0652E51F28E&View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fprojects%2FFROC%2FFROC%5FDocuments%2FMutual%20Aid&FolderCTID=0x0120002846EC3DE36C1940A1B4F0652E51F28E&View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fprojects%2FFROC%2FFROC%5FDocuments%2FMutual%20Aid&FolderCTID=0x0120002846EC3DE36C1940A1B4F0652E51F28E&View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fprojects%2FFROC%2FFROC%5FDocuments%2FMutual%20Aid&FolderCTID=0x0120002846EC3DE36C1940A1B4F0652E51F28E&View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

A. A description of the personnel, equipment, supplies, services and capabilities it has
available, together with a description of the qualifications of any skilled personnel;

B. An estimate of the time such personnel, equipment, supplies, and services will continue
to be available;

C. An estimate of the time it will take to deliver such personnel, equipment, supplies, and
services to the location(s) specified by the Requesting Party;

D. A technical description of any communications and telecommunications equipment
available for timely communications with the Requesting Party and other Assisting
Parties;

E. The names and contact information of all personnel whom the Assisting Party has
designated as team leaders or supervisors; and

F. An estimated cost for the provision of assistance.

ARTICLE VI: RENDITION OF ASSISTANCE 

The Requesting Party shall afford the emergency response personnel of all Assisting Parties, 
while operating within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Requesting Party, the same powers, 
duties, rights, and privileges, except that of arrest unless specifically authorized by the Requesting 
Party, as are afforded the equivalent emergency response personnel of the Requesting 
Party. Emergency response personnel of the Assisting Party will remain under the command and 
control of the Assisting Party, but during the Period of Assistance, the resources and responding 
personnel of the Assisting Party will perform response activities under the operational and tactical 
control of the Requesting Party. 

A. Unless otherwise agreed upon between the Requesting and Assisting Party, the
Requesting Party shall be responsible for providing food, water, and shelter to the
personnel of the Assisting Party. For Missions performed in areas where there are
insufficient resources to support responding personnel and equipment throughout the
Period of Assistance, the Assisting Party shall, to the fullest extent practicable, provide
their emergency response personnel with the equipment, fuel, supplies, and technical
resources necessary to make them self-sufficient throughout the Period of Assistance.
When requesting assistance, the Requesting Party may specify that Assisting Parties
send only self-sufficient personnel and resources but must specify the length of time
self-sufficiency should be maintained.

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

B. Unless the Requesting Party has specified the contrary, it shall, to the fullest extent
practicable, coordinate all communications between its personnel and the responding
personnel of the Assisting Parties, and shall determine and share the frequencies and
other technical specifications of all communications equipment to be used, as
appropriate, with the deployed personnel of the Assisting Parties.

C. Personnel of the Assisting Party who render assistance under this Agreement shall
receive the usual wages, salaries, and other compensation as are normally afforded to
personnel for emergency response activities within their home jurisdiction, and shall
have all the immunities, rights, interests, and privileges applicable to their normal
employment. If personnel of the Assisting Party hold local licenses or certifications
limited to the jurisdiction of issue, then the Requesting Party shall recognize and honor
those licenses or certifications for the duration of the Period of Assistance.

ARTICLE VII: REIMBURSEMENT 

After the Period of Assistance has ended, the Assisting Party shall have 45 days to develop a full 
reimbursement package for services rendered and resources supplied during the Period of 
Assistance. All expenses claimed to the Requesting Party must have been incurred in direct 
response to the emergency as requested by the Requesting Party and must be supported by proof 
of work and proof of payment.  
To guide the proper documentation and accountability of expenses, the Assisting Party should 
utilize the Claim Summary Form, available via the Division approved documents SharePoint site 
as a guide and summary of expense to collect information to then be formally submitted for review 
by the Requesting Party.  

To receive reimbursement for assistance provided under this agreement, the Assisting Party shall 
provide, at a minimum, the following supporting documentation to the Requesting Party unless 
otherwise agreed upon between the Requesting and Assisting Parties:  

A. A complete and authentic description of expenses incurred by the Assisting Party during
the Period of Assistance;

B. Copy of a current and valid Internal Revenue Service W-9 Form;

C. Copies of all relevant payment and travel policies in effect during the Period of
Assistance;

D. Daily personnel activity logs demonstrating emergency response activities performed
for all time claimed (for FDEM reimbursement Division approved activity logs will be
required for personnel activity claims);

http://www.floridadisaster.org/
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fprojects%2FFROC%2FFROC%5FDocuments%2FMutual%20Aid&FolderCTID=0x0120002846EC3DE36C1940A1B4F0652E51F28E&View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

E. Official payroll and travel reimbursement records for all claimed personnel expenses;

F. Neat and comprehensive fringe benefit calculations for each position class or category
of claimed personnel;

G. Written justification for all additional expenses/purchases incurred during the Period of
Assistance;

H. Proof of payment for additional/miscellaneous expenses incurred during the Period of
Assistance

I. Equipment activity logs demonstrating equipment use and operation in support of
emergency response activities for all time claimed (for FDEM reimbursement Division
approved forms will be required for equipment activity claims);

J. Proof of reimbursement to all employees who incurred emergency response expenses
with personal money;

K. Justification for equipment repair expenses; and

L. Copies of any applicable supporting agreements or contracts with justification.

If a dispute or disagreement regarding the eligibility of any expense arises, the Requesting Party, 
Assisting Party, or the Division may elect binding arbitration. If binding arbitration is elected, the 
Parties must select as an arbitrator any elected official of another Participating Party, or any other 
official of another Participating Party whose normal duties include emergency management, and 
the other Participating Party shall also select such an official as an arbitrator, and the arbitrators 
thus chosen shall select another such official as a third arbitrator. 

The three (3) arbitrators shall convene by teleconference or videoconference within thirty (30) 
calendar days to consider any documents and any statements or arguments by the Division, the 
Requesting Party, or the Assisting Party concerning the protest, and shall render a decision in 
writing not later than ten (10) business days after the close of the hearing. The decision of a 
majority of the arbitrators shall bind the parties and shall be final.  

If the Participating Parties do not elect binding arbitration, this agreement and any disputes arising 
thereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and venue shall be in Leon 
County, Florida.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create an employer-employee 
relationship or a partnership or joint venture between the participating parties.  Furthermore, 
nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by either Party of its sovereign immunity or the 
provisions of section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing herein shall be construed as consent by 
either Party to be sued by third parties. 

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

ARTICLE VIII: COST ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT 

The costs incurred by the Assisting Party under this Agreement shall be reimbursed as needed 
to make the Assisting Party whole to the fullest extent practicable. 

A. Employees of the Assisting Party who render assistance under this Agreement shall be
entitled to receive from the Assisting Party all their usual wages, salaries, and any and
all other compensation for mobilization, hours worked, and demobilization. Such
compensation shall include any and all contributions for insurance and retirement, and
such employees shall continue to accumulate seniority at the usual rate. As between the
employees and the Assisting Party, the employees shall have all the duties,
responsibilities, immunities, rights, interests, and privileges incident to their usual
employment. The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Assisting Party for these costs
of employment.

B. The costs of equipment supplied by the Assisting Party shall be reimbursed at the rental
rate established in FEMA’ s Schedule of Equipment, or at any other rental rate agreed
to by the Requesting Party. In order to be eligible for reimbursement, equipment must
be in actual operation performing eligible work. The labor costs of the operator are not
included in the rates and should be approved separately from equipment costs. The
Assisting Party shall pay for fuels, other consumable supplies, and repairs to its
equipment as needed to keep the equipment in a state of operational readiness. Rent
for the equipment shall be deemed to include the cost of fuel and other consumable
supplies, maintenance, service, repairs, and ordinary wear and tear. With the consent of
the Assisting Party, the Requesting Party may provide fuels, consumable supplies,
maintenance, and repair services for such equipment at the site. In that event, the
Requesting Party may deduct the actual costs of such fuels, consumable supplies,
maintenance, and services from the total costs otherwise payable to the Assisting Party.
If the equipment is damaged while in use under this Agreement and the Assisting Party
receives payment for such damage under any contract of insurance, the Requesting
Party may deduct such payment from any item or items billed by the Assisting Party for
any of the costs for such damage that may otherwise be payable.

C. The Requesting Party shall pay the total costs for the use and consumption of any and
all consumable supplies delivered by the Assisting Party for the Requesting Party under
this Agreement. In the case of perishable supplies, consumption shall be deemed to
include normal deterioration, spoilage, and damage notwithstanding the exercise of
reasonable care in its storage and use. Supplies remaining unused shall be returned to
the Assisting Party in usable condition upon the close of the Period of Assistance, and
the Requesting Party may deduct the cost of such returned supplies from the total costs
billed by the Assisting Party for such supplies. If the Assisting Party agrees, the
Requesting Party may also replace any and all used consumable supplies with like

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

supplies in usable condition and of like grade, quality and quantity within the time allowed 
for reimbursement under this Agreement. 

D. The Assisting Party shall keep records to document all assistance rendered under this
Agreement. Such records shall present information sufficient to meet the audit
requirements specified in the regulations of FEMA and any applicable circulars issued
by the State of Florida. Upon reasonable notice, the Assisting Party shall make its
records available the Requesting Party for inspection or duplication between 8:00 a.m.
and 5:00 p.m. on all weekdays, except for official holidays.

ARTICLE IX: INSURANCE 

Each Participating Party shall determine for itself what insurance to procure, if any. With the 
exceptions in this Article, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any Participating 
Party to procure insurance. 

A. Each Participating Party shall procure employers’ insurance meeting the requirements
of the Workers’ Compensation Act, as amended, affording coverage for any of its
employees who may be injured while performing any activities under the authority of this
Agreement, and shall be provided to each Participating Party.

B. Participating Parties may elects additional insurance affording liability coverage
for any activities that may be performed under the authority of this Agreement .

C. Subject to the limits of such liability insurance as any Participating Party may elect to
procure, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, in whole or in part, any
immunity any Participating Party may have in any judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding.

D. Each Participating Party which renders assistance under this Agreement shall be
deemed to stand in the relation of an independent contractor to all other Participating
Parties and shall not be deemed to be the agent of any other Participating Party.

E. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve any Participating Party of liability
for its own conduct and that of its employees.

F. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to obligate any Participating Party to
indemnify any other Participating Party from liability to third parties.

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

ARTICLE X: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, all Participating Parties 
shall be subject to the following requirements in the performance of this Agreement: 

A. All Participating Parties shall allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or
other materials subject to the requirements of the Public Records Act, as amended, and
made or received by any Participating Party in conjunction with this Agreement.

B. No Participating Party may hire employees in violation of the employment restrictions in
the Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended.

C. No costs reimbursed under this Agreement may be used directly or indirectly to influence
legislation or any other official action by the Legislature of the State of Florida or any of
its agencies.

D. Any communication to the Division under this Agreement shall be sent via either email,
the Division of Emergency Managements Enterprise System (DEMES), or mail to the
Response Bureau, Florida Division of Emergency Management, 2555 Shumard Oak
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100.

E. Any communication to a Participating Party shall be sent to the official or officials
specified by that Participating Party. For the purpose of this section, any such
communication may be sent by the U.S. Mail, e-mail, or other electronic platforms.

ARTICLE XI: EFFECTS OF AGREEMENT 

Upon its execution by a Participating Party, this Agreement shall have the following effect with 
respect to that Participating Party: 

A. The execution of this Agreement by any Participating Party which is a signatory to the
Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement of 1994 shall terminate the rights, interests, duties,
responsibilities, and obligations of that Participating Party under the  Statewide Mutual
Aid Agreement of 1994, but such termination shall not affect the liability of the
Participating Party for the reimbursement of any costs due under the Statewide Mutual
Aid Agreement of 1994, regardless of whether such costs are billed or unbilled.

B. The execution of this Agreement by any Participating Party which is a signatory to the
Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement shall terminate the rights, interests, duties,
responsibilities and obligations of that Participating Party under the Public Works Mutual
Aid Agreement, but such termination shall not affect the liability of the Participating Party
for the reimbursement of any costs due under the Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement,

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

regardless of whether such costs are billed or unbilled. 

C. Upon the activation of this Agreement by the Requesting Party, this Agreement shall
supersede any other existing agreement between it and any Assisting Party to the extent
that the former may be inconsistent with the latter.

D. Upon its execution by any Participating Party, this Agreement will continue in effect for
one (1) year from its date of execution by that Participating Party, and it shall
automatically renew each year after its execution, unless within sixty (60) calendar days
before the renewal date the Participating Party notifies the Division, in writing, of its intent
to withdraw from the Agreement.

E. The Division shall transmit any amendment to this Agreement by sending the
amendment to all Participating Parties not later than five (5) business days after its
execution by the Division. Such amendment shall take effect not later than sixty (60)
calendar days after the date of its execution by the Division and shall then be binding on
all Participating Parties. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, any Participating Party
who objects to the amendment may withdraw from the Agreement by notifying the
Division in writing of its intent to do so within that time in accordance with section E of
this Article.

F. A Participating Party may rescind this Agreement at will after providing the other
Participating Party a written SMAA withdrawal notice.  Such notice shall be provided at
least 30 days prior to the date of withdrawal.  This 30-day withdrawal notice must be:
written, signed by an appropriate authority, duly authorized on the official letterhead of
the Participating Party, and must be sent via email, the Division of Emergency
Managements Enterprise System (DEMES), or certified mail.

ARTICLE XII: INTERPRETATION AND APPLICATION OF AGREEMENT 

The interpretation and application of this Agreement shall be governed by the following conditions: 

A. The obligations and conditions resting upon the Participating Parties under this
Agreement are not independent, but dependent.

B. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement, and of the performance of all conditions,
obligations, duties, responsibilities, and promises under it.

C. This Agreement states all the conditions, obligations, duties, responsibilities, and
promises of the Participating Parties with respect to the subject of this Agreement, and
there are no conditions, obligations, duties, responsibilities, or promises other than those
expressed in this Agreement.

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

D. If any sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this Agreement is ruled unenforceable
or invalid, every other sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of the Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect, it being the intent of the Division and the other Participating
Parties that every portion of the Agreement shall be severable from every other portion
to the fullest extent practicable. The Division reserves the right, at its sole and absolute
discretion, to change, modify, add, or remove portions of any sentence, clause, phrase,
or other portion of this Agreement that conflicts with state law, regulation, or policy. If the
change is minor, the Division will notify the Participating Party of the change and such
changes will become effective immediately; therefore, please check these terms
periodically for changes. If the change is substantive, the Participating Parties may be
required to execute the Agreement with the adopted changes. Any continued or
subsequent use of this Agreement following the posting of minor changes to this
Agreement shall signify implied acceptance of such changes.

E. The waiver of any obligation or condition in this Agreement by a Participating Party shall
not be construed as a waiver of any other obligation or condition in this Agreement.

NOTE: This iteration of the State of Florida Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement will replace 
all previous versions. 

The Division shall provide reimbursement to Assisting Parties in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Article for missions performed at the direct request of the Division. 
Division reimbursement eligible expenses must be in direct response to the emergency as 
requested by the State of Florida. All required cost estimations and claims must be executed 
through the DEMES Mutual Aid Portal and assisting agencies must use all required FDEM forms 
for documentation and cost verification. If a Requesting Party has not forwarded a request through 
the Division, or if an Assisting Party has rendered assistance without being requested to do so by 
the Division, the Division shall not be liable for the costs of any such assistance.  
FDEM reserves the right to deny individual reimbursement requests if deemed to not be in direct 
response to the incident for which asset was requested. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement on the date specified 
below: 

http://www.floridadisaster.org/
https://portal.floridadisaster.org/projects/FROC/FROC_Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?View=%7B6F3CF7BD%2DC0A4%2D4BE2%2DB809%2DC8009D7D0686%7D


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

FOR ADOPTION BY A SPECIAL DISTRICT  

STATE OF FLORIDA  
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

By: ________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director or 
Ian Guidicelli, Authorized Designee  

___________________________________    SPECIAL DISTRICT, STATE OF FLORIDA 

By: ________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

Approved as to Form: 

By: ________________________________ 

     Attorney for District 

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director           

D I V I S I O N  H E A D Q U A R T E R S Telephone: 850-815-4000 S T A T E  L O G I S T I C S  R E S P O N S E  C E N T E R  
2 5 5 5  S h u m a r d  O a k  B o u l e v a r d  www.FloridaDisaster.org 2 7 0 2  D i r ec t o rs  R o w  
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F L  3 2 3 9 9 - 2 1 0 0  O r la nd o ,  F L  3 2 8 0 9 - 5 6 3 1  

SAMPLE AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTION OF 
STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________  

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, authorizes 
the State and its political subdivisions to provide emergency aid and assistance in the event of 
a disaster or emergency; and 

WHEREAS the statutes also authorize the State to coordinate the provision of any 
equipment, services, or facilities owned or organized by the State or it political subdivisions for 
use in the affected area upon the request of the duly constituted authority of the area; and 

WHEREAS this Resolution authorizes the request, provision, and receipt of 
interjurisdictional mutual assistance in accordance with the Emergency Management Act, 
Chapter 252, among political subdivisions within the State; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by __________________________________  

___________________________________________________________ that in order to 
maximize the prompt, full and effective use of resources of all participating governments in the 
event of an emergency or disaster we hereby adopt the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement which 
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

ADOPTED BY: __________________________________________________ 
DATE: _________________________________________________________ 

I certify that the foregoing is an accurate copy of the Resolution adopted by 

_____________________________________ on____________________________. 

BY: __________________________________   
TITLE: ________________________________  
DATE: ________________________________   

http://www.floridadisaster.org/


Ron DeSantis, Governor Kevin Guthrie, Executive Director 

D I  V I S I O N  H  E A D Q U A R T E R S 
2555  S h u m ar d O ak B o u l ev a rd 
T al l ah a s s e e , F L 323 99 - 2100  

Telephone: 850-815-4000 
www.FloridaDisaster.org 

S T A T E L O G I S T IC S R E S PO N S E C E N T E R 
2702 D i r ecto rs R o w 

Or lando , FL 32 809 - 5 631  

 

STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT – SAMPLE ATTACHMENT 
Encompassed Entities 

This notice is an acknowledgment of an amendment to the 2023 SMAA by the Florida Division 
of Emergency Management (“the Division”) which allows parent entities to include individual 
departments and subdivisions, within their authority, to be listed as SMAA designees eligible 
for SMAA request and assistance procedures.  

By our authority and adoption of the attached 2023 Statewide Mutual Aid agreement, as the 
parent entity, the following departments and subdivisions will be included as SMAA signatories 
for all asset request, assistance, and applicable reimbursement processes: 

All entities listed herein will still require access to the DEMES Mutual Aid System for FDEM 
Reimbursement process requirements. 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

http://www.floridadisaster.org/







	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	F_Budget Amend.pdf
	Date:
	May 14, 2024

	To:
	Board of Commissioners

	From:
	Sherry Burroughs, Executive Director & Lisa Ridley, Finance Director 

	Subject:
	FY 2023-2024 Budget Amendment #2 and Resolution 2024-002

	Budget Amendment.pdf
	Local Bud Amnd(8)-13613


	Blank Page
	G_SMAA 2023_Final 3-2024.pdf
	STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT - 2023
	ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE II: APPLICABILITY OF THE AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE III: INVOCATION OF THE AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE IV: RESPONSIBILITIES OF REQUESTING PARTIES
	ARTICLE V: RESPONSIBILITIES OF ASSISTING PARTIES
	ARTICLE VI: RENDITION OF ASSISTANCE
	ARTICLE VII: REIMBURSEMENT
	ARTICLE VIII: COST ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT
	ARTICLE IX: INSURANCE
	ARTICLE X: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
	ARTICLE XI: EFFECTS OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE XII: INTERPRETATION AND APPLICATION OF AGREEMENT
	FOR ADOPTION BY A COUNTY
	FOR ADOPTION BY A CITY
	FOR ADOPTION BY AN EDUCATIONAL DISTRICT
	FOR ADOPTION BY COMMUNITY COLLEGE OR STATE UNIVERSITY
	FOR ADOPTION BY A SPECIAL DISTRICT
	FOR ADOPTION BY AN AUTHORITY
	FOR ADOPTION BY A NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBE
	FOR ADOPTION BY A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
	SAMPLE AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTION OF                                   STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT





